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Date 23 March 2022 
  

Our ref 01430773 
  

Your ref  

 
Private & Confidential 
By Email 
 
Mr Alexander Parker 
Senior Managing Director 
The Buxton Helmsley Group Inc. 
New York Headquarters 
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 
New York, N.Y. 10036 
E: alexander.parker@buxtonhelmsley.com 
 
Endo International plc 
Notice of Active Breach of the Companies Act of 2014, S. 1111 

Dear Mr Parker 

We act as Irish legal advisors to Endo International plc (the Company).  We refer to your letter and email to the 
Company dated March 10, 2022 as well as your follow-up email dated March 17, 2022. 

The Company has reviewed your letter with its legal advisors and statutory auditors and has concluded that your 
assertions are not accurate. The Company can confirm that its net assets are not less than half of the Company's 
called up share capital and that section 1111 of the Companies Act 2014 is therefore not engaged.    

We note that calculations for the purposes of section 1111 of the Companies Act 2014 are based on the financial 
statements of the Company on a standalone basis and not on consolidated financial statements of the wider 
group. Your reference to the consolidated financial statements in the Company’s Form 10-K filing is therefore not 
appropriate in this context.  

For your convenience, a copy of the 2020 audited statutory financial statements of the Company (which are also 
available on the Company's website) accompanies this letter. The relevant balance sheet is on page 140. The 
2021 statutory financial statements have not yet been filed.  

We trust this clarifies matters. 

Yours sincerely 
 

 
A&L Goodbody LLP 

M-59198813-1 
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Date 29 March 2022 
  

Our ref JKF 01430773 
  

Your ref  
 
 
Private & Confidential 
By Email 
 
Mr Alexander Parker 
Senior Managing Director 
The Buxton Helmsley Group Inc 
New York Headquarters 
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 
New York NY 10036 
United States of America 
 
Endo International plc 

Dear Sir  
 
We refer to your letter of 25 March. 
 
We strongly disagree with your assertions regarding the Company and its directors.  
 
As previously advised, having consulted with us and the Company's auditors, the Company is satisfied that its net 
asset position neither was nor is less than half its called up share capital.  There therefore neither was nor is any 
requirement of the Company's directors to convene an EGM pursuant to s.1111(1) of the Companies Act 2014.   
 
The Company has constructively engaged with the Office of the Director of Corporate Enforcement in respect of 
this matter and will continue to do so, as appropriate.  
 
Nevertheless, the Company and its directors are always open to constructive engagement with shareholders and 
other stakeholders.  Therefore, we suggest that you contact Kenan Furlong of this office so that we can arrange a 
discussion between you and the Company's legal advisers regarding your concerns and the steps that the 
Company is taking on behalf of all its stakeholders.   
 
In order to make that dialogue as productive as possible, we ask that you be prepared to disclose fully your voting 
and economic interests in the Company and the interests of any third party whom you represent so that the 
Company can fully understand your perspective on these matters.  
 
We would also suggest that, if you have not done so already, you engage promptly Irish and US counsel to advise 
you not only on the intricacies of s.1111 but also to consider the significant Irish and US legal issues associated 
with your stated intention to initiate a public campaign based on these misplaced concerns.   
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Yours faithfully 
 

 

 
CC: Brandon Van Dyke 
 Partner 
 Skadden Arps Slate Meagher & Flom LLP 

M-59280080-1 
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Date 30 March 2022 
  

Our ref 01430773 
  

Your ref  
 
 
Private & Confidential 
By Email 
 
Mr Alexander Parker 
Senior Managing Director 
The Buxton Helmsley Group Inc 
New York Headquarters 
1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 
New York NY 10036 
United States of America 
 
Endo International plc 

Dear Sir  
 
We refer to your letter of 30 March. 
 
You have now repeatedly articulated in a number of letters the basis for your concerns.  The Company has 
considered those concerns, which are well understood, with its advisers. Based on that expert advice, the 
Company is satisfied that your concerns are misplaced.   
 
It is clear that there is little to be gained by us exchanging further, circular correspondence on this issue with you.  
Instead, the Company proposes to facilitate a discussion with you regarding your concerns.  We suggest this 
discussion takes place via Microsoft teams at 1pm ET on Monday 4 April.  Attending on behalf of the Company will 
be Kenan Furlong and Alan Casey of this office, Brandon Van Dyke of Skadden Arps Slate Meagher & Flom LLP 
and Brian Morrissey, Senior Corporate Counsel and Assistant Company Secretary at the Company.   
 
No doubt you will agree that for that discussion to be productive, it is essential that all parties approach it in good 
faith.  In order to demonstrate Buxton Helmsley's good faith in that regard, the Company asks that you now: 
 

1. Fully disclose the interests of Buxton Helmsley and any third parties you represent in the Company. 
 

2. Disclose the identity of the 'Irish counsel' that Buxton Helmsley retained in respect of this matter (in 
circumstances where the key issues of concern are governed by Irish law). 
 

3. Disclose the identity of the parties who will be participating in/attending the call on behalf of Buxton 
Helmsley. 

 
We look forward to hearing from you. 
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Yours faithfully 
 

 

 
CC: Brandon Van Dyke 
 Partner 
 Skadden Arps Slate Meagher & Flom LLP 

M-59306335-1 
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Date 5 April 2022 
  

Our ref 01430773 
  

Your ref  

 

 

Private & Confidential 

By Email 

 

Mr Alexander Parker 

Senior Managing Director 

The Buxton Helmsley Group Inc 

New York Headquarters 

1185 Avenue of the Americas, Floor 3 

New York NY 10036 

United States of America 

 

Endo International plc 

Dear Sir  

 

We refer to your letter of 31 March and email of 4 April. 
 

In our letter of 30 March, we asked you to fully disclose the interests that Buxton Helmsley and any third parties it 

represents have in Endo International plc. We also asked you to confirm the name of the Irish counsel whom you 

had previously indicated had been engaged by Buxton Helmsley on this matter. 

 

Because you have not provided this basic information, the Company will not proceed with a call at this time. 

Should you decide to reconsider and provide this information, the Company remains willing to arrange a call with 

advisers at a mutually agreeable time. 

 
Yours faithfully 

 

 

A&L Goodbody. 

 

CC: Brandon Van Dyke 

 Partner 

 Skadden Arps Slate Meagher & Flom LLP 

M-65025283-1 
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